## MURRAY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES SPECIAL MEETING THURSDAY, MAY 15, 2008

The Murray Planning Commission met in special session on Thursday, May 15, 2008 at 5:00 p.m. in the council chambers of City Hall located at 104 N. 5<sup>th</sup> Street.

**Commissioners Present:** Tom Kind, Mike Lovins, Mary Anne Medlock, Nelson Shroat, Howard Koenen, Ed Davis, Loretta Jobs, Ed Pavlick, Marc Peebles and Richard Vanover

#### Commissioners Absent: None

**Also Present:** Candace Dowdy, Peyton Mastera, Mike Pitman, David Roberts, Reta Gray, Mayor Rushing, Matt Mattingly, Bob Rogers, Dan Lavit, Josh Jacobs, Holly Wise and public audience

Candace Dowdy stated that KRS defines a Comprehensive Plan as: A document that serves as a guide for public and private actions and decisions to assure the development of public and private property in the most appropriate relationships. KRS 100.183 – 100.197 and 197.197 are the guidelines set forth for a city to establish, maintain and update a comprehensive plan. The contents of a comprehensive plan must at a minimum have a statement of goals and objectives, a land use element, a transportation element and a community facility element. A city may choose to add additional elements if in the judgment of the Planning Commission they will further serve the purposes of the comprehensive plan.

The elements of the Comprehensive Plan shall be reviewed by the Planning Commission at least once every five years and amended if necessary. If the goals and objective statement is proposed to be amended by the Planning Commission, at least one public hearing must be held on the proposed amendments before being forwarded to the legislative body for consideration, amendment and adoption. Ms. Dowdy stated that after reviewing the existing goals and objectives, the Planning Commission decided that there were some areas that needed to be updated. An advisory committee was established to review and make recommendations for any changes to the goals and objectives.

In May 2003, the Planning Commission held a hearing. At that time, the Land Use Element and the Goals and Objectives were revised. A recommendation was forwarded to the City Council for their approval. In June 2003, the City Council adopted the revised Land Use Element and the Goals and Objectives of the Comprehensive Plan. In October of 2007, the Planning staff presented a copy of the current Goals and Objectives to the Planning Commission for review. In November of 2007, the Planning Commission discussed the current Goals and Objectives. In December 2007, a Special Public Hearing was held to get input from the general public prior to making any revisions to the Goals and Objectives and at that time, it was noted that an Advisory Committee would be established to work on revisions for the Goals and Objectives. The Comprehensive Plan Advisory Committee was established with 23 members (which included Planning staff, Planning Commissioners, Board of Zoning members, City officials and other citizens. On March 6<sup>th</sup> and March 25<sup>th</sup>, 2008, the Advisory Committee met and held public

meetings in the City Council Chambers. April 2008, the Planning staff presented a revised draft of the Goals and Objectives to the Planning Commission for their review. The Planning Commission directed the Planning staff to set May 15, 2008 for the public hearing.

April 25, 2008 the revised draft for the Goals and Objectives was sent to the appropriate public officials and agencies, boards of health, school boards, public and private utility companies, civic, educational and professional organizations per KRS 100.193 for review. A copy of the Goals and Objectives were also made available on the City website, the Calloway County Public Library and Murray State University Waterfield Library for public view. On May 1<sup>st</sup> a public notice was put in the Murray Ledger & Times advising the public of the hearing. Ms. Dowdy stated that this hearing was to get input or comments from the general public in regards to the revisions of the Goals and Objectives and to answer any questions or concerns that they may have.

Ms. Dowdy stated that master plans had been received from Murray State University, Murray Main Street, Murray Calloway County Parks & Recreation System, and Murray Calloway County Hospital Strategic Plan. There was a Murray Small Urban Area Study from the Transportation Cabinet submitted also.

Mr. David Roberts stated that after looking at the existing 2002-2003 Goals and Objectives, the Advisory Committee tried to condense them into a more narrative format which would be easier to be read. Mr. Roberts stated that all of the existing Goals and Objectives were reviewed and when enhancements were needed, they were added.

# **GOALS AND OBJECTIVES**

The Kentucky Planning and Zoning Legislation, contained in Chapter 100.187 of the *Kentucky Revised Statutes*, includes a requirement that the Planning Commission and City Council shall adopt statements of goals and objectives. The statements shall serve as a guide for the physical development as well as the economic and social well being of the city.

#### FRAMEWORK

The establishment of community goals and objectives is an essential step in the comprehensive planning process for Murray and will provide the legal framework and documentation for supporting planning and development decisions by the Murray Planning Commission. The Goals and Objectives should address the major issues and concerns that are and will be affecting the City of Murray now and in the future.

**Goal** – A goal may be defined as a general statement of a desired result. Goal statements establish the long-term end toward which land use programs and activities are directed.

**Objective** – An objective is a statement of a specific, measurable, intermediate end that is achievable and marks progress toward a goal. Statements on community objectives provide the official governmental guidance for achieving goals.

## FUTURE LAND USE GOAL

To achieve a balanced pattern of land use that meets the needs of the population, stimulates physical, social and economic development, and protects the environmental well being of the community.

The City of Murray is seen as a place where people can:

- Provide shelter and meet the basic needs for themselves and their families.

- Provide equal opportunity to all people.
- Enjoy the beauty, safety, and security of our community.
- Become responsible citizens.

- Promote a community which is aesthetically attractive for residents, visitors, and potential investors.

- Create happier, healthier, and smarter children by promoting community wide efforts that improve the well being of our youth.

**Goal – Community Relations:** *To improve, both locally and regionally, the interrelationships among citizens, government, community, education, and business.* 

#### **Objectives**

- Encourage participation to enhance the community through citizen support, neighborhood groups, service by citizens on Boards and Commissions, government outreach programs including Fire and Police Academies, West Kentucky Night, and other civic organizations such as Character Counts, Community of Promise, Leadership Murray, Leadership Tomorrow, Town & Gown, and CASA.

- Work toward better coordination of community development activities with County officials and representatives.

- Improve intergovernmental relations with the county, state, and federal governments, the university, Purchase Area Development District, and other agencies that promote Murray.

- To continue assisting Murray and Calloway County's elderly and people with disabilities to be more independent and to live a fuller life.

- Establish a monitoring system for the comprehensive plan to ensure the goals and objectives are being pursued.

**Goal - Economy:** To improve the local economy through a planning process that stresses retention, expansion, attraction, local initiatives, diversification, and quality of businesses and manufacturers.

### **Objectives**

- Support economic growth sponsoring entities such as the Economic Development Corporation, Chamber of Commerce, Murray Convention and Visitor's Bureau, Murray Main Street, and MSU Regional Business and Innovation Center that would:

- Encourage growth in the downtown business sector.

- Utilize land for industrial development and continue recruiting new manufacturers.

- Promote the use of the new Murray EDC Industrial Park on 641 North.

- Work with the educational systems in their effort to provide an educated, skilled work force.

- Prepare for the economic impact of HWY 80 and the widening of HWY 121 Bypass North by addressing annexation policies and zoning regulations.

- In accordance with our zoning ordinance and boundaries, establish more neighborhood businesses along the periphery of residential zoning districts (within buffer zones) that are of lower impact and limited to neighborhood residential convenience needs such as groceries, pharmacies, barber and beauty shops, and similar uses that contribute limited traffic into the area, while minimizing resident trips out of the neighborhood for purchases.

- Continue investigating sources of revenue that will provide for growing service demands, finance capital improvements, and close the gap of unfunded mandates.

- Support regional economic planning efforts; in particular the Regional Industrial Park to be located in Graves County.

- Consider incentives and other programs that would promote infill, redevelopment and community improvement.

**Goal -Transportation:** *Plan for the development and management of a transportation system that accommodates the various means of moving people and goods from place to place in a safe and efficient manner.* 

### **Objectives**

- Identify potential problem areas such as HWY 80 along 641 North and Brinn Road, N. 16<sup>th</sup> Street from Main Street to HWY 80, and the Five Points Intersection.

- Support efforts which encourage the widening of the HWY 68/80 bridges that cross Kentucky Lake and Barkley Lake.

- Coordinate efforts with state and local officials to work towards completion of projects identified by the Kentucky Transportation Cabinet Six Year Highway Plan

- Identify intersections that need to be realigned.

- Continue to seek funding for state priority projects such as the Murray Business Loop, HWY 121 North Bypass North improvement project, and the HWY 641 South widening and improvement project.

- Establish a Strategic Traffic Management Plan that would expand cooperative efforts with KYTC regarding the 2008 Small Urban Area Traffic Study:

- Maximize connectivity between existing and proposed developments so as to facilitate traffic flow throughout the city.

- Continue a sidewalk maintenance program and expand our current sidewalk system in accordance with the Five-Year sidewalk improvement plan.

- Establish suitable bikeways that ensure safety and promote bicycle travel through a bikeway improvement plan.

- Re-inventory or reclassify streets as necessary.

- Update subdivision regulations to ensure residential developments are constructed with sidewalks.

- Support government efforts to improve upon the facilities at the Kyle-Oakley airport.

- To recognize the need for private railroad companies that will provide goods-movement services in areas where noise, pollution, accident and conflict potential with vehicular street traffic will be kept to a minimum while meeting required federal and state standards.

- Encourage the use of public transportation and provide fixed routes through the Murray Calloway County Transit Authority.

- Coordinate efforts with local authorities to avoid traffic delays and hazards at community events.

- Increase public awareness programs and support government sponsored initiates that encourage alternative sources of fuel (or alternative forms of energy) for transportation.

**Goal – Public Facilities and Services:** To improve the quality of life for all citizens by providing a wide range of services and facilities to include education, recreation, health/social, protective (fire, police, and emergency), infrastructure (water, sewer, streets, drainage), waste disposal, planning/code enforcement, and administration.

### **Objectives**

- Investigate expanding E-Government services and utilize internet capabilities that quickly process and deliver information. Consider the possibility of making Murray a "wireless city."

- Enhance commercial and residential public safety services by:

- Expanding S. 16<sup>th</sup> Street fire station to a centralized public safety facility (police, fire, and 911dispatch) that will better serve the southwest annexation area, Murray State University, and the downtown area.

- Construction of a new fire station on HWY 641 North that will provide adequate coverage for residential, commercial, and industrial development.

- Promote the safety of the community and a feeling of security among the residents as well as encourage citizen participation through programs such as the Citizen and Youth Police Academies.

- Continue to update fire and police equipment by seeking state and federal funding through grants.

- Maintain government facilities so that they promote accessibility, efficiency, and safety for citizens and government employees.

- Secure library facilities and services that satisfy resident needs, including timely, helpful, and readily available services that are attractive, accessible, convenient, and provide continuing education to all.

- Enhance the City of Murray Park System by:

- Continuing to seek funding for maintaining existing neighborhood parks and encouraging developers to dedicate land for the purpose of adding additional neighborhood parks in newly developed areas.

- Search for private land opportunities to expand the City Park System by citizens and private enterprise dedicating land, gifts, and through philanthropy.

- Continuing to look for alternative sources of revenue such as the leasing of government property for a narrow and limited range of commercial uses.

- Identify land in the Future Land Use Element of the Comprehensive Plan for expansion of the City Park System and designate land as either public or semi-public.

- Investigate the possibility of creating a Regional Park that will attract recreational leagues to participate in sporting activities.

- Continuously review and monitor city infrastructure services and practices (water, electricity, sewer, natural gas, telecommunications, sanitation, storm water) to identify new ways to deliver these services in an efficient, cost effective manner while taking into consideration the impact of any new infrastructure.

- Provide for the safest and most efficient integration of cellular antenna towers for cellular or personal communications services within the community, primarily through private enterprise, but in cooperation with government.

- Provide adequate health care services and facilities to accommodate all citizen needs and continue to seek funding for health care expansion and facility improvement.

**Goal – Housing:** To support a diversity of housing opportunities that provide adequate, safe, and affordable housing units for the citizens of Murray; and, to upgrade the quality and character of residential areas.

# **Objectives**

- Protect natural resources that enhance the quality and character of development.

- Upgrade the City's landscaping requirements for buffer areas between residential and commercial uses.

- Inventory older homes and neighborhoods that need revitalization. Seek TIF funds, CDBG grants, or other funding mechanisms for neighborhood revitalization.

- Encourage renovation of older neighborhoods.

- Establish a historical district that encourages mixed uses with renovated buildings that will accommodate suitable living space.

- Support stricter enforcement of the Property Maintenance Code to help preserve neighborhood aesthetics.

- Update the City of Murray's subdivision regulations and zoning ordinance.

- Encourage a greater sense of community within the city's residential neighborhoods through the organization of neighborhood associations or similar groups, with emphasis on safety, beauty, and overall pride.

- Allow for a wide range of residential types and densities throughout the city while continuing to support programs that provide more affordable housing opportunities for single and multi-family homes.

**Goal –Commercial, Industrial, and Agricultural Areas:** To recognize the need for a variety of commercial, industrial, and agricultural areas in our community that will provide the necessary goods and services while minimizing adverse effects on all other nearby uses.

## **Objectives**

- Improve the landscaping standards for site development.

- Adopt minimum standards for building design that will sustain and enhance community character.

- In accordance with our zoning ordinance and boundaries, establish more neighborhood businesses along the periphery of residential zoning districts (i.e. within buffer zones) that are of lower impact and limited to neighborhood residential convenience needs such as groceries, pharmacies, barber and beauty shops, and similar uses that do not attract much traffic into the area, but will minimize resident trips out of the neighborhood for their most frequent purchases.

- Avoid conditions and patterns that would create hazards in vehicular circulation.

- As urban expansion continues, secure additional agricultural lands and increase production accordingly, to offset the growing demands of food, raw materials, and other necessities of life.

**Goal – Historic Preservation:** To protect and preserve Murray's historic sites and structures while promoting a better understanding of the significance of the city's historic places, people, and events.

## **Objectives**

- Update the current Architectural Review Board ordinance by establishing an overlay district in the zoning ordinance.

- Sites and structures shall adhere to a Historic Preservation design guidelines as administered by the architectural review board.

- Support the Murray Main Street Master Plan by encouraging revitalization through rehabilitation of substandard buildings, removal of unattractive poles, wires, and signs that will make buildings, sidewalks, and other facilities in the downtown area more attractive, efficient, and convenient.

- Continue to seek state and federal funding for historical preservation.

**Goal – Environment:** To protect the natural environment from further deterioration and to improve existing environmental quality.

### **Objectives**

- Continue to promote community outreach programs such as Make a Difference Day and Adopt-A-Highway that stress environmental protection.

- Encourage the use of green space for both residential and non-residential developments.

- Reduce forms of pollution and continue researching (and implementing) alternative sources of energy that decrease pollution.

- Review the need for adopting a policy to encourage the construction of public and commercial buildings according to "Green-Building" standards.

- Continuously review storm water management practices so that site developments are designed to minimize the volume of storm water runoff by requiring the use of porous pavement, detention facilities, or other dissipating mechanisms.

- In conjunction with Murray State University's Community Recycling Center, establish a cooperative recycling plan.

Chairman Richard Vanover opened the public hearing and asked if there was anyone there with any questions or comments.

Bob Rogers, Superintendent of Murray Independent Schools, came forward. Mr. Rogers stated that the element that he wished to address concerned the Land Use Element of the Goals and Objectives. Mr. Rogers stated that the school system was very interested in preserving single

family housing (which is R-2 zoning) in the Murray Independent School district. The boundaries were drawn several years ago for the city school system and they have remained the same even though the city limits have expanded. Mr. Rogers added that the Independent School System is concerned with the loss of the city school properties due to the expansions of the Murray Calloway County Hospital and Murray State University. He added that they have lost between 10 and 15 million dollars worth of property and in addition, they have lost the opportunities for people to reside within their school district. Since 1990, the MCCH has acquired some 37 pieces of property and MSU has acquired approximately 50-75 all within the City School district; therefore, leaving them at both a loss of tax base for these properties and homes for families to live in. He requested that in the future the Planning Commission consider the impact to the school district (which is landlocked) before implementing additional zoning changes.

Dan Lavit, 1321 Olive Boulevard, was sworn in. Mr. Lavit was speaking on behalf of Pat Harrington. He stated that Ms. Harrington would like to add "community of promise" to the Future Land Use element. Ms. Dowdy stated that the City had previously received a letter from Ms. Harrington with her wishes and noted that Ms. Harrington's request had been implemented.

Josh Jacobs, 21 Wells Purdom, Almo, was sworn in. Mr. Jacobs was representing President Randy Dunn and Murray State University. Mr. Jacobs suggested a change of language in the Economy element. Mr. Jacobs stated that as MSU continued to grow and assess their programs and their impact on the community, the Kentucky World Trade Center may be changing its roll; therefore, he requested that the language be general enough that it would not limit or constrict the meaning. Mr. Jacobs suggested changing MSU Kentucky World Trade Center to MSU Regional Business and Innovation Center so that in the future this will not need to be edited or adjusted.

Chairman Vanover closed the public hearing and it was turned over to the Commissioners for questions and comments.

Nelson Shroat made a motion to adopt the revisions that were made to the Goals and Objectives under the Future Land Use element, with the Community Facility and Transportation elements to be reviewed for updates at a future time, and forward them on to the City Council for their consideration and approval. Ed Pavlick seconded the motion and it carried with a 10-0 voice vote.

**Nelson Shroat made a motion to adjourn. Marc Peebles seconded the motion and it carried unanimously.** The meeting adjourned at 5:30 p.m.

Chairman, Richard Vanover